
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING, 5:30 P.M. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION – Rev. Matthew Privett, Bethlehem Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Robert Wittmann, Health Director 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS 
 

A. County Government Internship Program Participants (Sarah Miller) 
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Report on the 2016 Session of the Tax Board of Equalization and Review (Commissioner 

Daeke) 
 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: August 2, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
B. Budget Amendments 
C. Tax Releases/Refunds – July 2016 
D. Money Market Annual Percentage Yield Agreement Amendment 
E. Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. Contract Amendment 
F. Globe Communications Contract Amendment # 2 
G. Atkins North America, Inc. Contract Amendment # 2 
H. 2017 Emergency Management Planning Grant Application 
I. FY17 JCPC Funding Plan Revision 

 
 



 2

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Public Hearing – Economic Development Incentive Agreement with Reliance Packaging 
(Misty Leland) 
 

B. Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: HCE Moore II – Stage Road 
(Debra Ensminger) 

 
C. Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Mining – Williams 

Sand and Clay, LLC – NC Hwy 211 (Debra Ensminger) 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Planning – Request for Approval to Modify the Cost Allocation Plan for the Community 
Development Division (Debra Ensminger) 

 
B. Planning – Request for Approval of Resolution for Road Additions to NC State Roadway 

System (Debra Ensminger) 
 

C. Planning – Request for Approval to Submit FY17 Rural Operating Assistance Program 
Application (Lydia Cleveland) 

 
D. Health – Request for Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement between Moore County and 

Hoke County for Back-Up SIDS Counselor (Robert Wittmann) 
 

E. Public Works – Request for Approval of Contract Extension for Generator Project 
(Randy Gould) 

 
F. Public Works – Request for Approval for Purchase of Water Meters (Randy Gould) 

 
G. Administration – Consideration of Resolution Regarding Occupancy Tax Rate (Wayne 

Vest) 
 

H. Administration – Request to Consider Bid for Abandoned Well Sites (Wayne Vest) 
 

IX. APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. Recreation Advisory Board 
 
B. Workforce Development Board 

 
C. Library Board of Trustees 

 
D. Transportation Advisory Board 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 



 3

XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
XIII. CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 DSS Board, Wednesday, August 17, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Transportation Advisory Board, Thursday, August 18, 3:00pm (Picerno) 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, August 23, 8:30am (Saunders) 
 Animal Operations, Thursday, August 25, 6:00pm (Picerno) 
 Pre-agenda Mtg., Wednesday, August 31, 9:00am (Ritter & Picerno) 
 Moore Co. Transportation Comm., Wednesday, August 31, 2:00pm (Daeke) 
 Labor Day Holiday, County Offices Closed, Monday, September 5 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, September 6, closed session 4:30pm, open 5:30pm 
 Special Meeting, Thursday, September 8, 8:30am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  8/16/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM:  Sarah Miller, 4-H Youth Development Agent 
  
DATE:  8/8/2016 
   
SUBJECT:  Recognition of Government Internship Program Participants 
 
PRESENTER: Sarah Miller 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Recognized 2016 government internship program participants. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Moore County Government Leadership Academy is a collaborative effort between Moore 
County Administration and Cooperative Extension’s 4-H program.  The program focuses on and was 
recognized for exposing youth to county government and providing job skills to help students learn 
leadership, responsibility, volunteerism, and self-confidence. 
 
The 2016 program was held the week of August 1st – 4th.  Three students volunteered in various 
County departments from 9:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. each day.  Departments hosting a student were:  
Animal Operations, Planning, and Sheriff’s Office.  A service learning project was completed with 
the Food Bank of Central and Eastern North Carolina.  Interns participated in Leadership Evolution 
on August 10th and 11th.  Each member of the academy earned community service hours which will 
be used toward school requirements for graduation. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.A.



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IV.B.8/16/2016

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text













 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, August 2, 2016 
in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North 
Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None 
       
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to enter 
into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 
At 5:30 p.m., the Board continued the meeting in open session, with no action to report from closed session. 
 
Reverend Arnold Comer of Summer Hill Baptist Church provided the invocation and Planning Director Debra 
Ensminger led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Ms. Pam Reed shared concerns regarding the Department of Social Services and new policies/procedures 
implemented by the DSS Board, which prohibited her from being added to the DSS Board’s next meeting 
agenda, after she had already been granted permission to be on the previous agenda (but had to be absent for a 
medical reason). 
 
 
 
 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.8/16/2016



 2

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: July 19, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
Budget Amendments 
Contract Amendment between Moore County and Communities in Schools for FY15-16 JCPC Grant 
New Courthouse Building Capital Project Ordinance 
NC Forest Service Contract for FY17 
Amendment to Original Performance Automotive Group, Inc. Contract Dated 4/19/16 
Resolution to Declare County-Owned Property Surplus and Convey to Town of Southern Pines 
Contract for School Nurse Funding Initiative FY17 
Health Department Bad Debt Write-Off 
Rejection of Bids for Well 24 Rehabilitation Project 
 
The budget amendments, courthouse capital project ordinance, and surplus property resolution are hereby 
incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices A, B, and C, respectively. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: HCE Moore II – Stage Road 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a public hearing regarding a conditional use 
permit request for a commercial solar collector facility to be located on Stage Road.  Vice Chairman Saunders 
inquired as to whether an appraisal report had been turned in and Ms. Ensminger said it would be available by 
the time of the hearing.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, 
the Board voted 5-0 to call a public hearing on August 16, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. for the following request:  HCE 
Moore II, LLC is requesting a conditional use permit to construct a commercial solar collector facility on ParID 
00005347 located at 415 Stage Road. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Sheriff: 
 
Amendment to Contract with Southern Health Partners  
 
Major Andy Conway requested the Board’s approval of an amendment to the County’s contract with Southern 
Health Partners for inmate medical services, increasing the contract not to exceed amount from $222,087.22 to 
$229,214.65.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board 
voted 5-0 to approve the proposed amendment to the contract with Southern Health Partners for FY2016 for 
providing medical services to inmates at the detention center. 

 
Amendment to Contract with Aramark Correctional Services 
 
Major Conway requested the Board’s approval of an amendment to the County’s contract with Aramark 
Correctional Services increasing the not to exceed amount from $240,000.00 to $249,849.23.  Commissioner 
Graham inquired about the cost included for staff meals and Major Conway explained that these meals were 
available for staff working 12-hour shifts and unable to leave the premises.  Vice Chairman Saunders made a 
motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to amend the food services contract with Aramark Correctional 



 3

Services, LLC increasing the amount not to exceed to $249,849.23 and to authorize the Chairman to sign the 
amended contract. 

 
Public Works: 
 
Service Contract for Recycling Services 
 
Solid Waste Division Manager Chad Beane requested the Board’s approval of a contract for recycling services 
for fiscal year 2017.  Vice Chairman Saunders made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, to approve 
the service contract with North Davidson Garbage Service, Inc. and authorize the Chairman to sign all 
necessary documents.  Chairman Picerno made inquiry regarding how cost savings reported was determined 
and Mr. Beane explained that it was based on fees.  The motion to approve the contract carried 5-0. 
 
Contract for Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion 
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould asked the Board to approve an agreement with McGill Associates for 
professional services for the Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion project, and he explained 
the background for this request.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the agreement with McGill Associates for the study and report phase 
and income surveys for the Vass Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Expansion pending the review and 
approval of the County Attorney. 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
reappoint Barbara Venditti and Elizabeth Cunningham to the Nursing and Adult Care Home Community 
Advisory Committee for three-year terms expiring August 31, 2019. 

 
Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint Larry Upchurch to the Sandhills Community College Board of Trustees for a term commencing 
September 1, 2016 and expiring June 30, 2020. 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest discussed the following: 

- Reminder to the commissioners to forward to himself or the Clerk any agenda items recommended for 
the Board’s September 8, 2016 work session 

- Reminder to the commissioners to be considering legislative goals to submit to the NC Association of 
County Commissioners 

- Noise Ordinance revision request by a citizen (The Chairman directed this item be added to the Board’s 
work session agenda.) 

- Photo ID will not be required of voters  
 

 
 
 
 



 4

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Regarding policies/procedures recently implemented by the Social Services Board, Chairman Picerno discussed 
his dislike for rules of a game being changed once the game had started.  He said he would like to know if the 
Board would have any problem with him asking the County Manager to send a letter to the DSS Board Chair 
inquiring as to why rules were changed.  (This was in reference to comments made by Ms. Pam Reed during the 
public comment period.)  Commissioner Graham said the DSS Board attorney was present and could possibly 
make explanation to the commissioners at this time.  Chairman Picerno said he did not want to hear from the 
attorney but rather from the DSS Board Chair as she was the one who sent a letter denying the citizen’s addition 
to the agenda.  He said he would like to have the response for the commissioners’ next meeting.  County 
Attorney Misty Leland explained that the DSS Board was not advisory in nature and was regulated by the NC 
General Statutes for a very specific purpose, and did not answer to the Board of Commissioners.  Chairman 
Picerno said as the chair of the commissioners and a representative of the citizens of the County, he wanted an 
explanation and he wanted a letter from the DSS Board Chair to the Board of Commissioners to explain.  
Chairman Picerno noted that the commissioners’ responsibility for the DSS Board could be changed and Ms. 
Leland concurred, briefly reviewing legal options for the organization and oversight of the department.  
Chairman Picerno directed County Manager Wayne Vest to put this item on the commissioners’ September 8, 
2016 work session agenda.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
come out of closed session and seal the minutes. 
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 
Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the August 2, 2016 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 5:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
         ____________________________________ 
         Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
 
 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.







clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.8/16/2016











  Agenda Item: 
         Meeting Date: 08/16/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Caroline Ly Xiong, Chief Finance Officer  
 
DATE:             August 8, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Money Market Annual Percentage Yield Agreement Amendment  
 
PRESENTER:  Caroline Ly Xiong 
 
REQUEST: 
Request the Board of Commissioners to approve the Money Market Account Annual Percentage 
Yield Agreement Amendment No. 1 and authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement amendment. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Board of Commissioners approved a contract with First Bank on October 6, 2015 to setup a new 
Public Funds Money Market with the following requirements below: 

 A minimum daily balance of $10,000,000 
 The account balance cannot exceed $35,000,000 
 0.40% annual percentage yield will be applied for a minimum of 1 year beginning on October 

6th, 2015 
 Limited to a maximum of six withdrawals a month 

 
The contract amendment will set a minimum annual percentage yield of 0.50% with no expiration 
date, and the other requirements will remain the same. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Staff will proceed with the paperwork involved in this transaction. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
A motion to approve the Money Market Account Annual Percentage Yield Agreement Amendment 
No. 1 and authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement amendment. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement Amendment 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.



FN 15-0390a 

COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 1 (this “Amendment”), is made this 16th day of August, 2016, between 
the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and First 
Bank, a corporation duly formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and First Bank previously executed an agreement dated October 6, 2015, which 
was for the purposes of the County establishing a Money Market Account (MMA) with First Bank (the 
“Original Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Original Agreement provided for an interest rate of 0.40% annual percentage yield 
(APY) for a minimum of one year from the date of the agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and First Bank desire to increase the interest rate to a minimum of 0.50% APY. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. This Amendment is effective as of July 13, 2016. 

 
2. Section 1 of the Original Agreement is amended to read, “Subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 

2 and 3 below, First Bank will apply to the MMA a minimum interest rate of 0.50% annual 
percentage yield (the “APY”).” 
 

3. Section 4 of the Original Agreement is deleted. 
 

4. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Original Agreement will remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 1 to 
be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.   
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  FIRST BANK 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
  
Finance Officer 



  Agenda Item: 
         Meeting Date: 08/16/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Caroline L. Xiong, Chief Finance Officer  
 
DATE:            August 8, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. Contract Amendment 
 
PRESENTER:  Caroline L. Xiong 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Request the Board of Commissioners to approve the contract amendment between Moore County and 
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. by increasing the contract not to exceed amount from 
$56,000 to $58,500 to audit the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and authorize the Chairman to sign 
the contract amendment. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On February 4th, 2014, the Board of Commissioners authorized five one-year contracts with Martin 
Starnes and Associates starting with fiscal year 2013-2014.  The Chairman was authorized to sign the 
subsequent annual contracts for the next four years as proposed in the bid tabulation.  The increase of 
$2,500 will be charged for additional compliance testing as required by the Office of the State 
Auditor that was not included in the original contract 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Once the contract amendment is fully executed, staff will forward the contract to Martin Starnes & 
Associates, CPAs, P.A., and the audit firm will request the approval from the LGC. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
The additional increase of $2,500 was already budgeted in Finance. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to approve the contract amendment between Moore County and Martin Starnes & 
Associates, CPAs, P.A. by increasing the contract not to exceed amount from $56,000 to $58,500 to 
audit the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and authorize the Chairman to sign the contract 
amendment. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Audit Contract Amendment  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.



Amended LGC-205 (Rev. 2015)
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

Whereas, _________________________________________ and______________________________________
Audit Firm Primary Governmental Unit

and _______________________________________ entered into a contract dated _________________, _______, 
Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable

in which the auditor agreed to audit the accounts of ______________________________________________ and 
Primary Governmental Unit

________________________________________ for fiscal year ended ___________________, __________
Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable

and to render its audit report on or before ___________________, _______.  It is now necessary that the audit 
completion and report submission be delayed past this date for the following reason (s):

____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________
The auditor, the Governmental Unit, and DPCU if applicable, agree that the time for completion of the audit and 
submission of the audit Report by the auditor to the Governmental Unit and the Local Government Commission 
is extended to 

__________________, _______.

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. Moore County, NC

 N/A February 10, 2016

Moore County, NC

 N/A June 30 2016

2016October 31

N/A - There is no change in the due date of October 31, 2016.

Additional fees of $2,500 will be charged for additional compliance testing as required by the Office of the State Auditor.

These fees were not included in the original contract.

Total fees will now be:

Audit - not to exceed $56,000

Additional compliance testing - not to exceed $2,500

Total fees - not to exceed $58,500

October 31 2016



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) -=------------M_o_o_re_C_o_u_nty-=--, _N_C __________ _ 
Governmental Unit 

N/A 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Audit Firm Signature: 
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 

Name of Audit Firm 

Signature Date August 1, 2016 

amcghinnis@martinstames.com 
Email Address of Audit Firm 

Governmental Unit Signatures: 
Moore County, NC 

Name of Primary Government 

By Nick J. Picemo, Chairman 
Mayor I Chaimerson: Type or print name and title 

Signature of Mayor/Chairperson of governing board 

Signature Date _____________ _ 

By N/A 
Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print name 

N/A 
**Signature of Audit Committee Chaimerson 

Signature Date. _____ ___:N:...::/~A:__ ____ _ 

**If Governmental Unit has no audit committee, mark 
this section ''NIA" 

N/A 

Date Primary Government Governing Body Approved 
Amended Audit Contract- G.S. 159-34(a) 

Pre-Audit Certificate to be completed if the Primary Government audit fee is changed in the Amended 
Contract: 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28 (a) 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the 
School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. Additionally, the following date is the date this audit contract was approved by the 
governing body. 

By Caroline Ly Xiong, Chief Finance Officer 
Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer: 
Type or print name 

Primary Government Finance Officer Signature 
Date. _____________________ _ 

(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.) 

cxiong@moorecountync.gov 
Email Address of Finance Officer 

Page 2 of 4 



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit                                                      
___________________________________________________ 

                                              Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

** This page to be completed by Discretely Presented Component Unit named in this Audit contract**

DPCU Governmental Unit Signatures:
_____________________________________________
Name of Discretely Presented Government

By___________________________________________
DPCU Board Chairperson: Type or print name and title

_____________________________________________
Signature of Chairperson of DPCU governing board

Signature Date________________________________

By___________________________________________
Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print name

____________________________________________ **
Signature of Audit Committee Chairperson

Signature Date________________________________
** If Discretely Presented Government Unit has no audit committee, mark this section "N/A"

Date DPCU Governing Body Approved Audit Contract - G.S. 159-34(a)

_____________________________________________

Pre-Audit Certificate to be completed if the DPCU audit fee is changed in the Amended Contract:

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28 (a)
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  

By___________________________________________
DPCU Finance Officer: 
Type or print name

_____________________________________________
DPCU Finance Officer Signature  

Date________________________________
(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.)

_____________________________________________
Email Address of Finance Officer

Moore County, NC

 N/A

 N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit                                                      
___________________________________________________ 

                                              Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Steps to Completing the Amended Audit Contract
 

1. Complete all parts of the Header Information – Include the audit firm name, Unit name, Discretely 
Presented Component Unit (DPCU) name if applicable (indicate N/A if not applicable),  original 
contract date, fiscal year end date, and original audit report due date. 

2. Explanation for Amending Audit contract - Previously we required a separate letter of explanation to 
accompany amended audit contracts. The explanation is now to be included in the body of the amended 
audit contract detailing the reason for the extension of time request and the steps the unit and auditor will
take to prevent a recurrence of lateness with subsequent year’s audits. 

3. Signature Area – The same people that signed the original audit contract must also sign the amended 
audit contract. If there has been a change in staff of the person(s) who signed the original audit contract, 
indicate this in the explanation area of the amended contract.  Make sure all applicable signatures are 
evident and properly dated. NOTE - If the original audit contract named and included auditing a DPCU 
that is a Public Authority under the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, the Board 
chairperson (and finance officer if there is a fee change) of the DPCU must also sign the amended audit 
contract in the areas indicated on Page 3.

4. Governing Board Approval - Amended audit contracts must ALSO be approved by the Unit’s
governing board pursuant to G.S. 159-34(a).  Indicate this new date on the amended contract under the 
signatures on Page 2. This includes the date the DPCU governing board approved the amended audit
contract (if applicable) on page 3.

5. Pre-Audit Certificate is to be completed by the finance officers if there is a change in fee.  This should
be noted in the explanation.

6. Reminders:

a. Provide correct email addresses for the audit firm and Unit finance officer as these will be used 
to communicate official approval of the audit contract.

b. Has the name and title of the Mayor or Chairperson of the Unit’s Governing Board and the 
DPCU’s Chairperson (if applicable) been typed or legibly printed on the contract and has he/she 
signed in the correct area directly under the Auditor’s signature?

7. Sending amended audit contract - After all the signatures have been obtained and the amended audit 
contract and is complete, please convert the signed contract into PDF form and submit it for LGC 
approval.  Send the amended audit contract using the most current audit contract submission process.
The current process will be found at the NC Treasurer’s web site at the following link –
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx.

Moore County, NC

 N/A



!Koo~mce, Wooten a Haywood, LLP 
t.tltl tf iiO I'IJIIIlC ACC:ot:tJf.VJf$ 

SYSTEM REVIEW REPORT 

To the Partners of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
and the Peer Review Committee of the North Carolina Association 

of Certified Public Accountants 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of 
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. (the firm) in effect for the year ended December 31, 
2014. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and 
Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory 
entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. The firm is 
responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable 
professional standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
design of the system of quality control and the finn 's compliance therewith based on our review. 
The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review 
are described in the standards at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. 

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed 
under Government Auditing Standards and audits of employee benefit plans. 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Martin 
Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. in effect for the year ended December 31, 2014, has been 
suitably designed and complied with to provide the finn with reasonable assurance of performing 
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms 
can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Martin Starnes & Associates, CP As, 
P.A. has received a peer review rating of pass. 

May 21,2015 

Ralolgh 
40GO O<lrrctl Orovc 
Posl Otllcc Oo~ l 71!06 
llaldf:h, Norlh Cilrohna 27GHl 

919 782 9265 
919 783 8937 Fi\X 

~~, {.j~ ~ ~,t..l? 
Koonce, Wooten & Haywood, LLP 

Our hom 

3511 Shannon Ro.td 
Swlt: 100 
Ourlla•n. North Carolina 27707 

919 354 2584 
919 489 8183 FAX 

Pittsboro 
10 Sanford Roml 
Post Qrl,cc Oox 1399 

P•ttsooro. North Carolina 27312 

919 542 6000 
919 542 5764 FAX 



        Agenda Item:    
        Meeting Date:  August 16, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Chris Butts, Information Technology Director    
 
DATE:  August 8, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Globe Communications Contract Amendment No. 2 
 
PRESENTER: Chris Butts 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve Globe Communications Contract Amendment No 2.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
This amendment will extend the project completion date with Globe Communications LLC from 
August 31st to September 30th. Globe Communications LLC is the county selected contractor 
installing the county aerial fiber line from the Rick Rhyne Public Safety building to the Parks and 
Rec office. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Once we have a permit from Duke Energy Progress to install the aerial county fiber, Globe 
Communications will begin installation from the Rick Rhyne Public Safety building to the Parks and 
Rec office. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
NA  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Recommend the Board to make a motion authorizing the Chairman to execute the contract 
amendment No. 2 with Globe Communications. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract Amendment No. 2 with Globe Communications 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.F.



FN 16-0148b 

COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 2 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 2 (this “Amendment”), is made this 16th day of August, 2016, between 
the County of Moore (the “County”) and Globe Communications, LLC, ( the “Contractor”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously entered into an agreement on April 5, 2016, which 
was for the purpose of the installation of an aerially installed fiber line (the “Original Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, since entering into the Original Agreement, the parties have encountered some delays 
involving Duke Energy Progress, LLC, and acquiring the proper authorization and permits for the 
installation of the aerially installed fiber line; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor now desire to amend the Original Agreement to extend the term 
of the Contract from August 31, 2016, to September 30, 2016. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. The first sentence of Section 2 of the Original Agreement will be amended to read, “The term of 

this Contract is from April 5, 2016, through September 30, 2016. 
 

2. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Original Agreement will remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 2 to 
be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Amendment is effective as of the date first 
written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  GLOBE COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
  
Finance Officer 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.G.





clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.H.











           Agenda Item:         
                  Meeting Date:  August 16th, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Caroline Ly Xiong   
 
DATE: 8/11/16 
 
SUBJECT: FY2017 JCPC Funding Plan Revision 
 
PRESENTER:  Caroline Ly Xiong 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council’s funding plan as presented and authorize the 
County Finance Officer to execute the Program Agreements with the revised budgeted amounts and 
any future Program Revisions on behalf of the County.  Also authorize the Chairman, Board of 
County Commissioners to execute the revised County Funding Plan. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board approved the FY2017 JCPC Funding Plan on June 21, 2016.  A change was made to the 
Local In-Kind amount for Moore Youth Services Program, and it was changed from $24,577 to 
$24,327, a decrease of $250.  The total amount of the grant did not change.  The County will receive 
$181,745 from the North Carolina Department of Public Safety, Division of Adult Correction and 
Juvenile Justice, and the total revised local match will be $104,724, a decrease of $250 from the 
original funding plan. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Once the revised funding plan is approved, the plan will be forwarded to the NC Department of 
Public Safety, Division of Adult Correction and Juvenile Justice for its final approval. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The funding for these services is provided from the State.  Local funding is provided by local cash 
match and local in-kind match. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Approve the revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council’s funding plan as presented and authorize the 
County Finance Officer to execute the Program Agreements with the revised budgeted amounts and 
any future Program Revisions on behalf of the County.  Also authorize the Chairman, Board of 
County Commissioners to execute the revised County Funding Plan. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
County Funding Allocation (Revised) 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.I.





Agenda Item:    
Meeting Date:  August 16, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney   
   Pat Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
DATE:   August 8, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement 
 
PRESENTER: Pat Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Request is hereby made for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve entering into an 
economic development agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Reliance Packaging, LLC, is an entity operating in the Town of Aberdeen and which was considering 
relocating to another state.  In 2014, Pat Corso, Executive Director of Moore County Partners in Progress, 
approached the County concerning an economic development incentive grant that involved the One NC 
Fund, which would help retain Reliance, provide for Reliance making $3.5 million in capital investments 
within the County, and provide for Reliance hiring 48 new employees making no less than the County’s 
average wage standard as determined by the North Carolina Department of Commerce. 
 
The One NC Fund grant, which has already been entered into between the State and Reliance, is in an 
amount not to exceed $52,000 and requires a dollar for dollar match.  As its portion of the match, the 
Town of Aberdeen has entered into an economic development incentive grant with Reliance in an amount 
not to exceed $24,997. 
 
As was presented to the County in 2014, the County’s portion of the One NC Fund grant match will be in 
an amount not to exceed $27,003.  These funds are proposed to be paid out in amounts equal to a 
percentage of ad valorem taxes paid by Reliance throughout the term of the agreement.   
   
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
In exchange for $27,003 paid by the County over five years, Reliance will make $3.5 million in capital 
investments within the County and hire 48 new employees making no less than the County’s average 
wage standard as determined by the N.C. Department of Commerce. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the attached Economic Development Agreement with Reliance Packaging, 
LLC, and authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Economic Development Agreement 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.





















“HCE Moore II” Solar Collector Facility – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

Agenda Item: __________ 
Meeting Date: August 16, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director 
 
DATE:  August 3, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit Request: Solar Collector Facility, 

Commercial (“HCE Moore II” – Stage Road) 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST 
HCE Moore II, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial Solar 
Collector Facility on approximately 27.5 acres of an overall approximately 127 acre parcel 
(ParID 00005347) located at 415 Stage Road, owned by William Richard Pressley as identified 
in Moore County tax records. 
 
This case was properly advertised, a public hearing sign was posted on the property, and all 
adjacent property owners were notified. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• Planning staff contacted the Town of Carthage due to the close proximity of the property 
to the Town’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ). The Town Clerk, Karen O’Hara stated 
the Town has no concerns regarding the request.  

• Current land use – There is currently one vacant stick built dwelling and two large metal 
storage containers within the project area (all 3 buildings will be removed as illustrated 
on the site plan). The use outside of the project area is agriculture (crops). 

• Adjacent land uses – Include single family homes and agriculture (crops). 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Hold the public hearing. 
 
ACTION BY THE PLANNING BOARD 
The Planning Board met on June 2, 2016 and recommended denial on a 4-2 vote due to the 
request not meeting the required finding of fact number three: The use will not substantially 
injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the use is a public necessity. The motion 
for denial included the following: “There has been no evidence saying that it will not, there’s 
been suggestions unsubstantiated that it may not, but there has been no proof from the applicant 
that it will not, given there has been no appraisal.”  
 
Planning Board members asked several questions regarding the testimony which are detailed in 
the attached Planning Board Minutes. Discussion included the applicant, Jim Morrison, stating 
that he will provide an engineer’s report stating that the salvage value will far outweigh the cost 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.B.



“HCE Moore II” Solar Collector Facility – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

of removal. Staff followed up with the applicant who stated the appraisal report and salvage 
report will be presented to the Board of Commissioners at the August 16th Public Hearing.     
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS OF FACT FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
In considering a Conditional Use Permit, the following Findings of Fact are required: 
 

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to plan; 

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
3. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the 

use is a public necessity; 
4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and 

approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and will be in 
general conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan.   

 
APPLICATION REVEW COMMENTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
The proposed site plan meets all Unified Development Ordinance requirements. In addition to 
the minimum requirements, the applicant is electing to preserve the 100 foot wide front 
vegetative buffer, as illustrated on the site plan. The applicant is also electing to remove the 
existing building and 2 barns, as illustrated on the site plan, prior to the issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy. Staff also recommends the additional condition, as agreed upon by the applicant, 
that should the Zoning Administrator, Building Inspector, Environmental Health, the Fire 
Marshal, or NCDOT identify minor changes staff shall be authorized to accept such minor 
modifications to site plan as necessary. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2015-2016 budget.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board of Commissioners make the following motion:  
 
Motion: Make a motion to approve/deny the Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on approximately 27.5 acres of an overall approximately 127 acre parcel 
(ParID 00005347) located at 415 Stage Road, including the Application Review Comments and 
Recommendations as listed in the staff report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• June 2, 2016 Planning Board Minutes 
• Vicinity Map 
• Land Use Map 
• Conditional Use Permit Application 
• Submitted Site Plan 



  

MINUTES 
MOORE COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

THURSDAY JUNE 2, 6:00 PM 
MOORE COUNTY HISTORIC COURTHOUSE – 2nd FLOOR 

 
Board Members Present: Rich Smith (Chair), Scott McLeod, Bobby Hyman, Joseph 

Garrison, David Lambert, Eddie Nobles 
 
Board Members Absent:      Aaron McNeill (Vice Chairman), Gene Horne 
 
Staff Present: Debra Ensminger, Planning Director 
 Brenda White, Deputy County Attorney 
 Lydia Cleveland, Administrative and Transportation 

Program Manager 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Rich Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Board Member Scott McLeod offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Board Member Eddie Nobles led in the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
MISSION STATEMENT 
 
Board Member David Lambert read the Moore County Mission Statement. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of Meeting Agenda  
B. Approval of Minutes of May 5, 2016 
C. Consideration of Abstentions  

 
Board Member McLeod motioned to approve the Consent Agenda and the motion was 
seconded by Board Member Nobles. The motion passed unanimously (6-0).  
 
 
 



  

PUBLIC HEARING(S) 
 
Chairman Rich Smith introduced the public hearing as the following. 
 
HCE Moore II, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on approximately 27.5 acres of an overall approximately 127 acre 
parcel (ParID 00005347) located at 415 Stage Road, owned by William Richard Pressley 
as identified in Moore County tax records.. 
 
Planning and Transportation Director presented the following on the behalf of Theresa 
Thompson, Moore County Senior Planner. “This is a request to locate a solar collector 
facility approximately 120 feet to the south of Stage Road. The property is located 
approximately 3,000 feet to the southeast of the town limits of Carthage. Planning staff 
contacted the Town of Carthage due to close proximity of the property to the town’s extra 
territorial jurisdiction. The Town Clerk, Karen O’Hara stated the town has no concerns 
regarding this request. The current use of the property is agriculture crop land. The 
storage buildings as shown on the pictures included in your staff report will be 
demolished by the applicant as demonstrated on the site plan. Adjacent land uses include 
single family homes and agricultural crop lands. The project area will comprise of 
approximately 27.5 acres of the 127 acre lot. The site plan meets the UDO screening 
requirements by utilizing type 3 screening to the side and rear of the property adjacent to 
residentially zoned property. In addition to the Unified Development Ordinance 
minimum screening requirements the applicant will preserve the 100 foot vegetative 
buffer along the front property line. The applicant is imposing this standard as an 
additional condition for approval as listed in the staff report. The proposed site plan 
meets all development ordinance requirements. In addition the applicant has agreed that 
all specific use standards will be met as specified in the Unified Development Ordinance 
which will be inspected by county staff before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued. 
Tonight’s request is a Quasi-Judicial case, which requires 4 findings of fact to be met as 
listed in the staff report. Any recommendation of denial would need to include which 
finding is not met and how it is not met. Staff recommends the additional conditions as 
agreed upon by the applicant and listed in the staff report of preserving the 100 foot 
vegetative buffer along the front property line and removing the 3 existing structures on 
the property prior to the Certificate of Occupancy issuance. There may need to be minor 
adjustments made to the site plan therefore staff also recommends including an additional 
condition to the motion if approved as stated in the staff report that reads should the 
zoning administrator, building inspector, environmental health, NC DOT, or the Fire 
Marshal identify minor changes staff shall be authorized to accept such minor 
modifications to the site plan as necessary. The presentation was followed by no 
discussion from the board. 
 
Harley James Morrison II from 727 West Hargett Street Raleigh, NC 27510 spoke on 
behalf of the applicant, HCE Moore II, LLC who is applying for a conditional use permit 
- solar collector facility to be located at 415 Stage Road in Carthage, NC stated the 
following as part of his presentation . The property is currently zoned RA (Rural 
Agriculture), permitted uses within this zone or district include solar collector facilities 
under a conditional use permit with standards as set out in ordinances. To address the 



  

finding that the use meets all required conditions let’s take a look at the site plan. In terms 
of location, the site is located within three miles of the substation on Vass Carthage Road. 
Setbacks are met or exceeded with 50 foot setbacks and adjoining residential properties, 
65 feet from the rights-of-way and centrally located inverters that exceed 150 feet to 
properties boundaries. In terms of glare, we have addressed that through our layout and 
supplemental and existing screening both for approved solar components. All 
components are UL listed and will be installed with accordance with applicable building 
and electrical codes. The height of our system will not exceed 25 feet. Look to the left of 
the site plan the top of the solar panels will be about 8 feet. We will be connecting to 
Duke Power lines that already exist along Stage Road and along Stage Road we have a 
100 foot natural vegetative buffer that is pre existing that we want to maintain. In 
addition to that screening we will be using type 3 screening as outlined in the ordinance 
where we adjoin residential properties and on the east side as well. The facility will be 
fenced to a height of 6 feet  with 3 strands  of barbed wire at the top with an emergency 
access allowed 24/7, with disconnects labeled and locations pointed out to the appropriate 
authorities. In the event of a failure of other conditions that would lead to the ending of 
generating power we will remove the system and notify Moore County. If you look at the 
far western edge you will see that the solar components do not come within 50 feet, we 
get that by adding the 20 ft wide buffer with 20x25 foot internal road. On the eastern 
edge we are setback in excess of 50 feet per zoning requirements. If you direct your 
attention to the center of the array you will see an access road and along that access road 
there are three 1.67 Megawatt inverters. Those inverters are located centrally to be in 
excess of 150 feet from the property boundary. Access to the site will be in the northeast 
corner from Stage Road. We also have an internal road system that will allow us to 
access the site. The east edge has a 3 layer buffer consisting of 7 trees and 7 shrubs, and 
14 trees per 100 linear feet as detailed in Moore County Ordinances. Along Stage Road 
this is one of the best screening sites I have seen from Stage Road. We have 100 feet of 
natural pines and under growth located there that screens the property from Stage Road 
and really keeping it out of sight. When the time comes to decommission, we notify the 
County immediately. All structures and equipment will be removed within six months but 
really we don’t foresee that becoming an issue. These solar sites as you are aware have 
been installed numerous times in the county and have a very long life. We expect to see 
minimal degradation in the first 20 years. The panels are guaranteed to maintain at least 
80% output through that time which that means at the end of 20 years we will be 
churning out a good amount of power that degradation continues roughly lineally to 
increase the lifespan of the project. That I hope will satisfy your finding that we are in 
conformity with the conditions of the Conditional Use Permit for solar facilities. Further I 
would put forward that you find the use will not be detrimental or endanger the public 
health and safety moral or comfort for general welfare. The site is secured like I 
described with a 6 foot fence topped with 3 strands of barbed wire. The solar farm 
produces no emissions and will be constructed in accordance with applicable building, 
electrical codes and meet all listing requirements and the farm will provide power to 
Carthage and the greater Moore County area. On the finding that we will not adversely 
affect the use or any physical attribute of adjoining or abutting property. This facility has 
no off site emissions, no lighting, minimal traffic, and screening as described earlier. The 
use will not be detrimental to the enjoyment of nearby property. One similar use in 



  

agricultural improvement is Greenhouses; they are both passive solar collectors like a PV 
system and have similar visual impact. As to the finding that the location and character of 
the use will be developed according to the plan as submitted and it will be in harmony 
with the area. As described by the staff numerous agricultural uses are on properties 
bordering and we intend to continue that harvesting of the sun with this project. Further it 
has no sound above ambient levels at the fence line, no smells, and no emissions. We 
have a low visual impact and are well screened from Stage Road and other properties as 
detailed in the site plan. The applicant asked for questions. 
 
Board Member McLeod asked Mr. Morrison what his occupation is and the term of the 
project. Mr. Morrison stated he is solar developer and there is a 30 year lease in place. 
Board Member McLeod stated that the natural buffer is made up of pine trees, oak trees, 
dogwood trees and over a period of 30 year those trees are going to grow. Mr. Morrison 
stated that as the trees grow he expects the understory will continue to grow and provide 
an effective screening throughout the term of the project. Board Member McLeod 
continued and asked who did the real estate value survey. Mr. Morrison commented that 
Mr. Rich Kirkland is usually used but he could not be present at this meeting. Board 
Member Lambert further asked if he was consulted at all in this case. Mr. Morrison stated 
the he was not contacted but we would be happy to.  
 
Board Member Lambert asked for specifics regarding sound from the inverters. Mr. 
Morrison stated that the inverters are specked out to have an immediate proximity output 
of noise at about 60 decibels, at 150 feet back that sound drops below 50 decibels with 
further deductions as you move away. Board Member Lambert asked how far the inverter 
on the far right is from the homes across the street on Stage Road. Mr. Morrison stated 
that each inverter would be approximately 200 feet away due to setback requirements and 
expects noise to minimal across the road. 
 
Board Member Joseph Garrison asked how often scheduled maintenance is completed. 
Mr. Morrison stated most of the maintenance comes from maintaining the lawn which 
can defer from once a month during the summer to longer intervals during the winter 
when the grass becomes dormant. 
 
Chairman Smith stated that the site does meet requirements as staff has stated and it was 
generous to leave the 100 feet of natural trees but asked if it is possible to locate the 
potential sparse areas under the trees. Mr. Morrison stated that he would be happy to 
review the screening program and possibly provide additional screening.  
 
Board Member Garrison asked if the site insured or bonded. Mr. Morrison stated that 
they will provide an engineer’s testimony or report that stated the salvage value far 
outweighs the cost of removal. 
 
Board Member McLeod asked since the applicant has not provided evidence that the use 
will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the use is a 
public necessity should the Board even vote on this case. Deputy County Attorney 
Brenda White stated that that she doesn’t see any way the Board cannot vote. 



  

Board Member Garrison asked who has the burden of proof and Ms. White stated that 
this is up to the applicant. 
 
Board Member Garrison asked Mr. Morrison that in his experience has he seen any issues 
where it has an effect. Mr. Morrison stated he has not seen any from his past projects. 
 
Ms. Ensminger stated that if the Board does not feel comfortable the item can be tabled 
but at the time it is forwarded the information must be provided. Ms. White further stated 
that it could be passed based on the condition of required information. 
 
The Board requested to here further testimony before making a decision. 
 
Ms. Sara Webster of 1145 Union Church Road stated that she is concerned with the 
hazardous chemicals used in the solar panels and the value of property in the area. Ms. 
Webster requested additional conditions be made if the Board agrees to recommend 
approval. Ms. Webster submitted a packet of information for the record. Board Member 
McLeod asked where Ms. Webster’s property was and Mr. Webster explained through 
the map provided. McLeod further asked about the chemicals that are used that she found 
during her research. Ms. Webster explained that it depends on where they come from but 
cadmium and silicone is ones she remembered. 
 
Dr. Herb Eckerlin a Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering professor at NC State spoke 
on behalf of the Webster’s. Dr. Eckerlin provided testimony regarding the herbicides that 
are used, declining property values, broken panels, and the specific panels that are 
installed versus part of an application. Board Member Garrison asked if Mr. Eckerlin had 
any data regarding his testimony and Mr. Eckerlin stated he did not. 
 
Chairman Smith asked for Mr. Morrison to speak about Mr. Eckerlin testimony. Mr. 
Morrison stated the panels are UL Listed and will be installed in accordance with national 
and state electrical codes. He assured that permits will be filed for Stormwater and 
typically we use mowers and weed whackers to address maintenance. In the case of 
broken panels it will be identified and repaired and to the best of my knowledge based on 
the specifications from the panel manufacturer they are not classified as a hazardous 
waste. 
 
The Board held further discussion regarding the use of the case. 
 
Mr. Harry Webster of 1145 Union Church Road reviewed the map and shared concerns 
the regarding the stormwater runoff, screening and the topography of his land adjacent to 
the proposed location of the solar facility. Scott McLeod asked what specific chemicals 
he is concerned about, and Mr. Webster stated herbicides. 
 
The Board held further discussion regarding the use of the case. 
 
Board Member Joseph Garrison made a motion to endorse the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners to approve the Conditional Use Permit for the use of a Solar Collector 



  

Facility on the parcel known as ParID# 00005347 including additional conditions one 
through three. Chairman Smith held discussion regarding the additional screening and the 
applicant agreed to find an acceptable screening solution. The motion failed. 
 
Board Member David Lambert made a motion to endorse the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners to deny the Conditional Use Permit for the use of a Solar Collector 
Facility on the parcel known as ParID# 00005347 including additional conditions one 
through three. Board Member Lambert stated the reason as follows “ I don’t think we can 
affirmatively state that they meet required finding number three; The use will not 
substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the use is a public 
necessity. There has been no evidence saying that it will not, there’s been suggestions 
instantiated that it may not, but there has been no proof from the applicant that it will not, 
given there has been no appraisal.” The motion was seconded by Board Member Scott 
McLeod and the motion passed 4-2. (Chairman Rich Smith and Board Member 
Joseph Garrison were dissenting votes). 
 
OTHER BOARD MATTERS 
 
Board Member McLeod asked for clarification regarding the 4 findings of fact. Ms. 
White stated they are required findings but the question of the standard of proof comes 
into consideration. The Board held further discussion Board Member McLeod’s 
concerns. 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Ms. Ensminger stated the Unified Development Ordinance is done and an electronic copy 
will be provided to you via email. 
 
BOARD COMMENT PERIOD 
 
No comments were made by the Board. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Board Member Garrison made a motion to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Board 
Member McLeod. The motion passed unanimously (6-0) 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
Lydia Cleveland 



CARTHAGE

CARTHAGE

US 15-501

U
N

IO
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

H
U

LS
E

Y

STAGE

NC 24-27

SCOTT

LY
N

C
H

T
Y

S
O

N

BURKE

D
O

T

U
N

IO
N

 P
IN

E
S

G
L

E
N

D
O

N
-C

A
R

T
H

A
G

E

M
U

S
E

C
LA

R
K

CURRIE

M
C

C
R

IM
M

O
N

WAVE

BRADLEYS

HOLLY

K
IN

G
S

B
LA

C
K

CASHEW

CHARLIE

VICINITY MAP
STREAMS

0 0.5 1
Miles



CARTHAGE

STAGE

U
N

IO
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

NC 24-27

BURKE

H
U

LS
E

Y

LAND USE MAP

Single family homes

ETJ

Single family 
homes

Agricultural

Agricultural

Agricultural

Agricultural

Project Area

0 500 1,000
Feet











20' ROAD

20
' R

OA
D

STAGE ROAD

STAGE ROAD

10
0'

150' x 150'
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
AREA

20' ROAD

20' ROAD

10'

40'

10'

40'

10'

40'

48
3'-

8"

12
9'-

5"

280'-4"

372'-1"

245'-2"

171'-3"

608'-8"
112'-2"

136'-6"

316'-5"

26
9'-

6"

46
3'

28
0'-

4"

1033'-2"

10
0'

118'-1"

20' ROAD

15
0'

243'-5"
53'-4"

52'-6"

57'-3"

31'-11"

68'-9"

50
'-8

"

60
' R

OW

60
' R

OW

60
' R

OW

84'-1"

50'

·

·

·

·
·

21' 3"

2'

8'

63
'

6'-
6"

20
°

ESA MANAGEMENT

SERVICES, PLLC

4155 St. Johns Parkway, Suite 1100
Sanford, FL 32771  USA

407.268.6455 tel  |  800.755.0801 fax
Lic: NC# P-1522

SCALE 1:50

SCALE 1:250

SCALE 1:200

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MAIN ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE MAIN GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANEL, 310 W POLYCRYSTALLINE  72-CELL MODULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACKING UNIT, 19 MODULES 2 HIGH, 25 DEGREES TILT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPING BUFFER AS REQUIRED BY COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPING BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER PAD, 1 x 1.666 MW  SMA INVERTER & TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY POND FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE BUFFER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ACCESS ROAD 20' RADIUS FIRST 20' PAVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDINGS TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' EXISTING TREE BUFFER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' EXISTING TREE BUFFER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPNG BUFFER AS REQUIRED BY COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPING BUFFER AS REQUIRED BY COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING POND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL LANDSCAPE PLAN TYPE 3  15 evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per  evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per  trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per  and 7 evergreen shrubs per and 7 evergreen shrubs per  7 evergreen shrubs per 7 evergreen shrubs per  evergreen shrubs per evergreen shrubs per  shrubs per shrubs per  per per 100 linear feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out  linear feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out linear feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out  feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out  20 feet wide. Trees to reach out 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out  feet wide. Trees to reach out feet wide. Trees to reach out  wide. Trees to reach out wide. Trees to reach out  Trees to reach out Trees to reach out  to reach out to reach out  reach out reach out  out out a minimum height of twelve (12) feet in three (3)  minimum height of twelve (12) feet in three (3) minimum height of twelve (12) feet in three (3)  height of twelve (12) feet in three (3) height of twelve (12) feet in three (3)  of twelve (12) feet in three (3) of twelve (12) feet in three (3)  twelve (12) feet in three (3) twelve (12) feet in three (3)  (12) feet in three (3) (12) feet in three (3)  feet in three (3) feet in three (3)  in three (3) in three (3)  three (3) three (3)  (3) (3) years. Shrubs to grow to a height of two (2)  Shrubs to grow to a height of two (2) Shrubs to grow to a height of two (2)  to grow to a height of two (2) to grow to a height of two (2)  grow to a height of two (2) grow to a height of two (2)  to a height of two (2) to a height of two (2)  a height of two (2) a height of two (2)  height of two (2) height of two (2)  of two (2) of two (2)  two (2) two (2)  (2) (2) feet in two (2) years. Setbacks from property line to the fence will be  from property line to the fence will be from property line to the fence will be  property line to the fence will be property line to the fence will be  line to the fence will be line to the fence will be  to the fence will be to the fence will be  the fence will be the fence will be  fence will be fence will be  will be will be  be be covered with existing vegetation to be used as  with existing vegetation to be used as with existing vegetation to be used as  existing vegetation to be used as existing vegetation to be used as  vegetation to be used as vegetation to be used as  to be used as to be used as  be used as be used as  used as used as  as as existing landscape buffer. Evergreen Tree: Green Giant Arborvitae or  Tree: Green Giant Arborvitae or Tree: Green Giant Arborvitae or  Green Giant Arborvitae or Green Giant Arborvitae or  Giant Arborvitae or Giant Arborvitae or  Arborvitae or Arborvitae or  or or similar. Evergreen Bush: Needle Point Holly or similar. Natural landscaping will be enhanced as  landscaping will be enhanced as landscaping will be enhanced as  will be enhanced as will be enhanced as  be enhanced as be enhanced as  enhanced as enhanced as  as as necessary to ensure it meets type 3 requirements

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT. Top view

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEEDLE POINT HOLLY OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE, 15 TREES EVERY 100 LINEAR FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN SHRUB , 7 SHRUBS EVERY 100 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT TYPE 3. Front view Only where nesccessary (Natural landcaping will be enhanced as necessary to ensure it meets Type 3 requirements)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' POST EMBEDMENT (Approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
G202

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" x 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL ADVISORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  AND THE IDEAS AND AND THE IDEAS AND  THE IDEAS AND THE IDEAS AND  IDEAS AND IDEAS AND  AND AND DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  HEREIN ARE HEREIN ARE  ARE ARE THE PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  OF ESA MANAGEMENT OF ESA MANAGEMENT  ESA MANAGEMENT ESA MANAGEMENT  MANAGEMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC AS PART OF THE  PLLC AS PART OF THE PLLC AS PART OF THE  AS PART OF THE AS PART OF THE  PART OF THE PART OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL  OF PROFESSIONAL OF PROFESSIONAL  PROFESSIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  AND CANNOT BE USED, IN AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  CANNOT BE USED, IN CANNOT BE USED, IN  BE USED, IN BE USED, IN  USED, IN USED, IN  IN IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  OR IN PART, FOR OTHER OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  IN PART, FOR OTHER IN PART, FOR OTHER  PART, FOR OTHER PART, FOR OTHER  FOR OTHER FOR OTHER  OTHER OTHER PROJECTS WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  THE EXPLICIT THE EXPLICIT  EXPLICIT EXPLICIT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  FROM ESA FROM ESA  ESA ESA MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  PLLC. IT IS PLLC. IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON TO  FOR ANY PERSON TO FOR ANY PERSON TO  ANY PERSON TO ANY PERSON TO  PERSON TO PERSON TO  TO TO ALTER ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  ANY CONTENTS OF THESE ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  CONTENTS OF THESE CONTENTS OF THESE  OF THESE OF THESE  THESE THESE DRAWINGS UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  UNLESS THEY HAVE THE UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  THEY HAVE THE THEY HAVE THE  HAVE THE HAVE THE  THE THE APPROVAL OF THE LICENSED  OF THE LICENSED OF THE LICENSED  THE LICENSED THE LICENSED  LICENSED LICENSED PROFESSIONAL EXPLICITLY IN WRITING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/05/02

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCE Moore II, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
415 Stage Rd, Carthage, NC 28327

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/10/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
00

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCONNECTION REQUEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT DRAWING PRELIMINARY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SHEET SIZE AT FULL SCALE: 24" x 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER: NC LIC#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID K. CLICK 041877

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/03/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRATE SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/03/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD TEMP. CONSTRUCTION ZONES/LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.996 MWac PV SYSTEM: : Number of Modules: 22,534 Peak Power: 6,985,540 Wp DC Number of Inverters: 3 SMA SC1850 Intended PV Leased Area: 27.5 acres PROJECT OWNER: HCE Moore II, LLC 4155 St Johns Pkwy, Ste 1100 Sanford, FL 32771 SITE LOCATION: (35°20'N, 79°22'W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/05/02

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN MODIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC



“Williams Sand & Clay” – Call To – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report  
 

Agenda Item: _____ 
Meeting Date: August 16, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  August 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Call to Public Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit Request: Mining 

(“Williams Sand and Clay, LLC” – NC Hwy 211) 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
This is a request to call for a public hearing on September 6, 2016 at 5:30pm for the following 
request: Williams Sand and Clay, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the use of a 
sand mine on approximately 50 acres (two phases of approximately 25 acres per phase) of an 
overall approximate 660 acre parcel (ParID 00013401) located north of and adjacent to NC Hwy 
211 and east of and adjacent to Samarcand Rd, owned by Arthur R & Sons Williams, as 
identified in Moore County tax records. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The property is undeveloped. Adjacent land uses include undeveloped property, single family 
homes, the Inn at Eagle Springs (closed), and a solar collector facility (Samarcand site).  

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Call for a public hearing on September 6, 2016 at 5:30pm. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT  
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2015-2016 budget.   
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board met on August 4, 2016 and unanimously recommended approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing on September 6, 2016 at 5:30pm for the following 
request: Williams Sand and Clay, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the use of a 
sand mine on approximately 50 acres (two phases of approximately 25 acres per phase) of an 
overall approximate 660 acre parcel (ParID 00013401) located north of and adjacent to NC Hwy 
211 and east of and adjacent to Samarcand Rd, owned by Arthur R & Sons Williams, as 
identified in Moore County tax records. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS 

• Submitted Site Plan 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.C.



670

65
0

630

610

59
0

690

57
0

55
0

710

730

65
0

73
0

650

69
0

690

590650

650

690

65
0

69
0

59
0

67
0

670

65
0

610

670

690

65
0

570

670

730

690

710

590

670

690

57
0

650

610

710670

63
0

630

550

61
0

67
0

67
0

630

63
0

670

69
0

610

61
0

650

650

67
0

690

650

650

590

63
0

61
0

690

690

570

NC 211

67
0

69
0

65
0

63
0

650

Sheet No.

Drawn By: Henry Haas, E.P. 
Hunt Environmental Associates

Checked by: Michael C. Hunt, P.G.
Hunt Environmental Associates

Date:  29 June 2016

Sand Mine Application
Moore County North Carolina
Township: 01
Deed Book/ Page: 241 / 462
Parcel ID:  00013401

Pending State Mining Permit

HEA-001

Area Overview

Layout Map

0 0.6 1.2 1.80.3
Miles

0 0.065 0.13 0.195 0.260.0325
Miles

Legend
Permanent Buffer - 75' Setback 

Phase II Overall Limits

Berm at a minimum of 6' ht

Phase I Rough Buffer Outline w/Silt Fencing

Proposed Sand Mine with Haul Road

Proposed Screening/Washing Plant

Proposed Washing/Settling Pond

Railroads

Streams

Streets

Tax Parcels

Lakes & Rivers

Name of Mine: Williams Sand and Clay, LLC
Address: 1515 NC Hwy 211, Eagle Springs, NC, 27242

Phase I: Total Disturbed Acreage                                    25.0 ac
Phase II: Total Disturbed Acreage                                   25.0 ac

Note: We will meet the specific use standards outline in 9.4.5



Cost Allocation Plan Approval   

 
  Agenda Item: ___________ 
  Meeting Date: August 16, 2016 

MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:   July 13, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Approval to Modify the Cost Allocation Plan for Moore County’s 

Community Development Division 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
   
REQUEST: 
This is a request for approval to modify the Cost Allocation Plan for Moore County’s Community 
Development Division. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Cost Allocation Plan (“the Plan”) has been reviewed and approved by our internal auditor, Tami 
Golden, and the county attorney’s office. 
 
The purpose of the Plan is to forecast recurring reimbursable grant expenses for the upcoming budget 
year, and is a requirement of jurisdictions receiving grant funds.  Any anticipated expenditures for 
recurring activities should be incorporated in the Plan, which includes items like training and 50% of 
the salary of one full time Admin Assistant. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
The Cost Allocation Plan will be used as a guide in reimbursing costs of salary, benefits and training 
for staff employed in the implementation of programs identified in the Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The Cost Allocation Plan itself will have no fiscal impact; its purpose is to forecast grant reimbursable 
costs. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the modified Cost Allocation Plan for Moore County’s Community 
Development Division. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Cost Allocation Plan 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.



COST ALLOCATION PLAN 

Moore County 

 
 
 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this cost allocation plan is to summarize, in writing, the methods and 
procedures that the Community Development division of the Moore County Planning & 
Community Development Department (henceforth, Moore County Community 
Development) will use to allocate costs to various programs, grants, contracts and 
agreements. 
 
This Cost Allocation Plan is based on the Indirect Allocation method described in OMB 
Circular A-87.  Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for common or joint 
objectives and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. 
 
 
GENERAL APPROACH 

The general approach of Moore County Community Development in allocating costs to 
particular grants and contracts is as follows: 
 
A. All allowable direct costs are charged directly to programs, grants, activity, etc. 
 
B. All other allowable fundraising and administrative costs (costs that benefit all 
programs and cannot be identified to a specific program) are allocated to programs, 
grants, etc. using the direct salary allocation method. 
 
 
ALLOCATION OF COSTS 
The following information summarizes the procedures that will be used by Moore County 
Community Development beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017: 
 
A.  Compensation for Personnel Services - Documented with timesheets showing 
tasks performed by employees whose salaries are reimbursed through grants and 
allocated based on time spent on each program or grant. Salaries and wages are charged 
directly to the program for which work has been done.  Timesheets are submitted to 
Finance for reimbursement from program accounts within 60 days after the completion of 
the salary month. 
 

1. Fringe benefits include FICA and Medicare which are allocated in the same 
manner as salaries and wages. At this time health insurance, dental insurance, life & 
disability and other fringe benefits are not included. 
 

2. Vacation, holiday, and sick pay are allocated in the same manner as salaries 
and wages. 
 



Moore County Community Development has one full time administrative assistant; 
approximately 50% of this salary may be accounted for and reimbursed under grants and 
or programs as follows: 
 
GRANT/ 

PROGRAM 

HOURLY 

RATE 

HOURS COUNTY FICA AMOUNT 

ALLOCATED 

CD Resource $17.68 550 x 1.0765 $10,467.89 
SFR14 $17.68 500 x 1.0765 $19,516.26 
TOTAL $17.68 1050 x 1.0765 $29,984.15 
CD Resource is past program support received from previous grant programs; 
SFR14 is the 2014 Single Family Rehab program 
 
B. Travel Costs - Allocated based on purpose of travel. All travel costs (local and 
out-of-town) are charged directly to the program for which the travel was incurred. 
 
C. Professional Services Costs (such as consultants, accounting and auditing 
services) - Allocated to the program benefiting from the service. All professional service 
costs are charged directly to the program for which the service was incurred. 
 
D. Office Expense and Supplies (including office supplies and postage) – Allocated 
based on usage. Expenses used for a specific program will be charged directly to that 
program. Postage expenses are charged directly to programs to the extent possible. 
 
E. Printing (including supplies, maintenance and repair) - Expenses are charged 
directly to programs that benefit from the service. 
 
F. Training/Conferences/Seminars – Allocated to the program benefiting from the 
training, conferences or seminars. Costs that benefit more than one program will be 
allocated to those programs on a per training basis.  In other words, the entire cost from a 
single training (conference fee, hotel, mileage, MI&E) will be allocated to one single 
grant.  While the cost of the trainings may differ, the total number of trainings will be 
allocated among all grants. 
 
The training costs listed below are incurred annually for training conferences by the 
Professional Housing Rehab Association of North Carolina (PHRANC) and the North 
Carolina Community Development Association (NCCDA.)  Total cost of training reflects 
the possibility of sending two staff members to two training conferences each. 
 

GRANT # TRAININGS AMOUNT ALLOCATED PER STAFF 

SFR14 2 $2,500 
TOTAL 2 Annually $5,000 (all staff, all training) 
SFR14 is the 2014 Single Family Rehab program  

 



Staff Report – Request for Road Additions to the NC State Roadway System 
 

Agenda Item:_____ _____ 
Meeting Date: August 16, 2016 

 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning and Transportation Director 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution for Road Additions to the NC State Roadway System   
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST 
This is a request to adopt a resolution recommending the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) to add 0.77 miles of North Prince Henry Way, 0.04 miles of Riley 
Lane, 0.51 miles of Turriff Way, 0.08 miles of Birnam Lane, 0.09 miles of Lothian Lane, and 
0.06 miles of Bagpipe Lane located within Sinclair Subdivision to the state roadway system. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The property owner, H&H Investments, Inc. has petitioned NCDOT for the above referenced 
roads to be added to the state maintenance system. The NCDOT has submitted the petition to the 
Board of Commissioners for its review and approval. Upon Board of Commissioners approval of 
the “Petition of Road Addition” NCDOT can add the roads to the state maintenance system. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
If approved, the attached resolution will be forwarded to NCDOT for them to proceed with 
additions of the roads to the state roadway system. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2015-2016 budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 
Staff recommends two motions: 
 
Motion #1: Make a motion to approve the attached resolution supporting the addition of 0.77 
miles of North Prince Henry Way, 0.04 miles of Riley Lane, 0.51 miles of Turriff Way, 0.08 
miles of Birnam Lane, 0.09 miles of Lothian Lane, and 0.06 miles of Bagpipe Lane within 
Sinclair Subdivision to the state roadway system and accept maintenance responsibilities. 
 
Motion #2: Make a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the attached resolution. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Vicinity Map 
Letter from the NCDOT District Supervisor 
Petition for Road Addition  
Resolution for Road Addition  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.



US
 1 

HW
Y

NC 211 HWY

LOBELIA RD

NC
 2

2 
HW

Y

NC 705 HWY

NC 24-27 HWY

US
 1

5-
50

1 
HW

Y

NC 73 HWY

NC 5 HW
Y

MIDLAND RD

US
 1

 H
W

Y

NC 24-27 HWY
NC 24-27 HWY

US 1 HWY

NC 22 HW
Y

NC 73 HWY

MC
P H
ER
SO
N R
D

TURR
IFF W

AY

N PRINCE HENRY  WAY

LOCH LN

ROSS
LY N C

HAP E
L LN

LOTHIAN LN

BIRNAM LN

BAGP IP E LN
RILEY

 LN

RA MC
P H
ER
SO
N R
D

MARKS RD

TUR
RIFF
 WAY

N P
RIN
CE
 HE
NR
Y  W
AY

BROOKGREEN LN

LOCH LN

ROSS
LY N C

HAP E
L LN

ISL
AY
 DR

LOTHIAN LN

BIRNAM LN

S P
RIN
CE
 HE
NR
Y  W
AY

BAGP IP E LN

RILEY
 LN

KIRKCALDY  LN

KATIE LN

Current Zoning

Aerial Photography 2010

Moore  County GIS Discla im e r
All th e  inform ation conta ine d  on th is m e d ia  is pre pa re d  for th e inve ntory of re a l prope rty
found  with in Moore County.  All d a ta is com pile d  from  record e d  d e e d s, pla ts, a nd  oth e r 
public re cord s a nd  d a ta .  Use rs of th is d a ta a re h e re by notifie d  th a t th e a fore m e ntione d  
public prim a ry inform ation source s sh ould  be  consulte d  for ve rification of th e inform a tion.
All inform a tion conta ine d  h e re in wa s cre a te d  for th e County’s inte rna l use.  MOORE 
COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS AND EMP LOY EES MAKE NO WARRANTY  AS 
TO THE CORRECTNESS OR ACCURACY  OF THE INFORMATION SET FORTH ON 
THIS MEDIA WHETHER EXP RESS OR IMP LIED, IN FACT OR IN LAW, INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMP LIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY  AND 
FITNESS FOR A P ARTICULAR USE.  Any re sa le  of th is d ata is strictly proh ibite d  in 
accord a nce  with  North  Ca rolina Ge ne ra l Sta tute s 132-10.
Grid  is ba se d  on North  Ca rolina  Sta te P la ne Coord inate  Syste m  NAD83 (fe e t).

´

1 in = 1,267 ft

1 in = 426 ft

Vicinity Ma p
NCDOT Ad d ition Re que st

County Location Map
1 inch  = 10 m ile s

Legend
B-1
B-1-CUD
B-2
GC-SL
GC-WL
I
P -C

P UD/CUD
P UD-H
RA
RA-2
RA-2-CUD
RA-5
RA-20

RA-40
R-MH
RA-CUD
RA-USB
RE
VB
VB-CUD













Form SR-2 (3/2006) 

North Carolina Department of Transportation 
Division of Highways 

Request for Addition to State Maintained Secondary Road System 
 

North Carolina 

County: MOORE 

Road Description: 0.77 miles of North Prince Henry Way, 0.04 mile of Riley Lane, 0.51 mile of   

Turriff Way, 0.08 mile of Birnam Lane, 0.09 mile of Lothian Lane, and .06 mile of Bagpipe Lane within 
the Sinclair Subdivision. 
 
WHEREAS, the attached petition has been filed with the Board of County Commissioners of the County 

of     MOORE     requesting that the above described road, the location of which has been indicated in 

red on the attached map, be added to the Secondary Road System, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners is of the opinion that the above described road should 

be added to the Secondary Road System, if the road meets minimum standards and criteria 

established by the Division of Highways of the Department of Transportation for the addition of roads to 

the System. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of  

    MOORE     that the Division of Highways is hereby requested to review the above described road, 

and to take over the road for maintenance if it meets established standards and criteria. 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of  

    MOORE     at a meeting on the  16th  day of    August   , 2016 . 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the  16th  day of    August   , 2016 . 

 
Official Seal Clerk, Board of Commissioners  

 County:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
 

Forward direct with request to the Division Engineer, Division of Highways 



MCTS, ROAP FY17 

 Agenda Item:         

        Meeting Date:  August 16, 2016 

 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning and Transportation Director 

 
DATE:  August 9, 2016    

 
SUBJECT: FY2016-2017 Rural Operating Assistance Program Application   

 

PRESENTER:  Lydia Cleveland 

   Administrative and Transportation Program Manager 

 

REQUEST: 

This is a request to approve the submittal of the FY2016-2017 Rural Operating Assistance Program 
Application. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The FY17 ROAP (Rural Operating Assistance Program) allocation is $224,714 which will be 
disbursed to the county in four payments. 
 
The FY17 allocation is an increase from FY16 by $22,152. The four payments will be disbursed 
amoung the counties by formula on a quarterly basis with a milestone report due each quarter, from 
the county that accounts for the use of the ROAP funds and calculates any unspent funds. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

Upon approval the FY2016-2017 Rural Operating Assistance Program application will be submitted. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

The Rural Operating Assistance Program is made up of three funds EDTAP (Elderly and Disabled 
Transportation Assistance Program), EMPL (Employment Transportation Assistance Program), and 
RGP (Rural General Public) that make up the full allocation of $224,714. EDTAP and EMPL does 
not require a match but RGP does require a 10% match or $11,593.30 which is made up through 
token sales. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the FY2016-2017 Rural Operating Assistance 
Program Application. 
 

SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

FY2016-2017 Rural Operating Assistance Program Application 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. C.





































































            Agenda Item:         
                   Meeting Date: 16 August 16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Moore County Health Department   
 
DATE: August 2, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Mutual Aid Agreement between Moore County and Hoke County  
 
PRESENTER: Robert R. Wittmann, MPH 
 
REQUEST: The Moore County Board of Commissioners approves the Mutual Aid Agreement 
between Moore County and Hoke County Concerning a Backup Sudden Infant Death Syndrome 
Counselor, and authorizes the Chairman to execute the same. 
 
BACKGROUND: the County of Moore and the County of Hoke desire to enter into a mutual 
aid agreement concerning the provision of backup Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) 
Counselor. In the event either county’s primary SIDS Counselor is unavailable, that county may 
request the presence of a backup SIDS Counselor from the other county; and the assistance 
provided will not be to the detriment of the responding county.  
The attached Mutual Aid Agreement has been reviewed and approved by the Moore County 
Attorney’s Office. 
 
 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Upon approval by the Moore County Board of Commissioners 
and the Hoke County Board of Commissioners, the Moore County Health Director will work with 
Hoke County Health Director to take the necessary steps to implement the enclosed Mutual Aid 
Agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: There will be no additional local funds required. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY:  
  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: The Resolution Approving the Mutual Aid Agreement and 

            the Mutual Aid Agreement.  
 
 

 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN MOORE COUNTY AND HOKE COUNTY CONCERNING 

A BACKUP SUDDEN INFANT DEATH SYNDROME COUNSELOR 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Moore and the County of Hoke desire to enter into a mutual 
aid agreement concerning the provision of backup Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) 
Counselor; and 
 

WHEREAS, in the event either county’s primary SIDS Counselor is unavailable, that 
county may request the presence of a backup SIDS Counselor from the other county; and 
 

WHEREAS, the assistance provided will not be to the detriment of the responding 
county.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners approves the Mutual Aid Agreement between Moore County and Hoke County 
Concerning a Backup Sudden Infant Death Syndrome Counselor, and authorizes the Chairman to 
execute the same. 
 

Adopted this 16th day of August, 2016. 
 
 
   
 Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 



FN 16-0307 

  
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
This Mutual Aid Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into the 16th of August, 2016, 
between the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (“Moore 
County”), and the County of Hoke, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (“Hoke 
County”). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
WHEREAS, each party has entered into a 2016-2017 Maternal Health Agreement with the State 
of North Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Maternal Health Agreement has certain staff requirements, which includes a 
requirement for a backup Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) Counselor for each party’s 
primary Counselor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. If either party’s primary SIDS Counselor is unavailable, that party may make a request of 
the other party to provide a backup SIDS Counselor.  The responding party, in its sole 
discretion, will determine if it has sufficient resources available to provide the requesting 
party with the requested backup SIDS Counselor.  No assistance will be provided that 
will in any way impact the ability of the responding party to provide resources to its 
citizens. 
 

2. Requests for assistance will be made by the Health Director of the requesting party to the 
Health Director of the responding party.  When a request is received, the responding 
party will assess and determine if it has adequate resources available to provide the 
requested assistance.  If not, the responding party will notify the requesting party and the 
responding party’s determination will not be reviewable or subject to challenge. 
 

3. To the fullest extent permitted by law, each party will indemnify and hold harmless the 
other party, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, 
losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees 
and charges of engineers or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related 
to court action or arbitration) arising out of or in any way related to this Agreement.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

4. The term of this Agreement is from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.  This 
Agreement will automatically renew for one year periods beginning July 1, 2017.  
 



 

FN 16-0307 Page 2 of 2 

5. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 10 days’ written notice. 
 

6. This Agreement may be modified at any time upon the mutual written consent of the 
parties. 
 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Agreement is effective as of the date 
first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF HOKE 
 
_____________________________________         
Helene Edwards, MS, RD, LDN 
Hoke County Health Director 
 
 
____________________________________ 
James Leach, Chairman 
Hoke County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
_____________________________________         
Robert R. Wittmann, MPH 
Moore County Health Director 
 
 
 
   
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman   
Moore County Board of Commissioners   



  Agenda Item:    
         Meeting Date:  8/16/16 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Moore County Public Works Department   
 
DATE:  August 5, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Generator Project  
 
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE, Director 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Extend the construction contract term to Sanford Electric Company, Inc., to December 31, 2016. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The construction contract for the Generator project was awarded to Sanford Electric and the 
construction contract executed on June 21, 2016.  The contract completion date was established as 
September 30, 2016.  The Pre-construction conference was held on July 19, 2016.  Due to the lead 
time required for some of the electrical items a contract extension is required to December 31, 2016. 
 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Extend construction contract term. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
None.  The project is budgeted for the amount of $60,000.00 as previously awarded. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the contract amendment to extend the Sanford Electric Company, Inc. 
contract completion date to December 31, 2016.  
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
 
I:PublicWorks/Wastewater/Genertor Plug/AgendaItems/GeneratorProject 

      
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.



FN 16-0216a 

COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 1 (this “Amendment”), is made this 16th day of August, 2016, between 
the County of Moore (the “County”) and Sanford Electrical Contractors, Inc. ( the “Contractor”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously executed an agreement on June 21, 2016, which is for 
the improvement of existing generators at various lift station sites owned by the County (the “Original 
Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor both recognize and agree that additional time is necessary for the 
services to be provided under the Original Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. The first sentence of Section 2 of the Original Agreement is amended to read, “The term of this 

Contract is from June 21, 2016, through December 31, 2016.” 
 

2. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Original Agreement will remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 1 to 
be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Amendment is effective as of the date first 
written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  CONTRACTOR 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
  
Finance Officer 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.F.











clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.G.







 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION OUTLINING STANDARDS FOR THE CVB TO MEET IN ORDER FOR THE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO CONSIDER INCREASING THE OCCUPANCY TAX 

RATE UNDER SESSION LAW 2015-256 WHICH GIVES THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
THE OPTION TO INCREASE THE OCCUPANCY TAX RATE BY UP TO 3% OVER AND 

ABOVE THE CURRENT AUTHORIZED OCCUPANCY TAX RATE OF UP TO 3% 
 

 
WHEREAS, Session Law 2015-256, ratified September 23, 2015, gives the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners the option to increase the occupancy tax rate by up to three percent (3%) over and above 
the current existing occupancy tax rate of up to three percent (3%); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Convention & Visitors Bureau (hereinafter “CVB”) has presented the concept of 
building, maintaining, and operating a State of the Art sports complex in southern Aberdeen (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Project”) and, further, desires for the Board of Commissioners to double the County 
Occupancy Tax rate to assist with funding the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners will consider increasing the Occupancy Tax rate, if the CVB 
presents to it all of the following: (1) a long term sustainable plan (hereinafter “Plan”) showing how 
revenue generated will be used effectively to promote tourism within Moore County; (2) the Plan 
submitted will not include the participation by the County in any way including operating, maintaining, 
funding, securing debt and/or oversight of the Project; (3) the Plan submitted has been approved 
unanimously by the CVB Board; and (4) the plan includes letters of support from all other entities 
charged with room occupancy tax collections and remittance. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Moore County Board of Commissioners has set forth 
certain standards to be met by the CVB in order for it to consider increasing the County Occupancy Tax 
rate. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the Clerk to the Board send copies of this signed Resolution the 
members of the CVB Board as well as the Director. 
 
Adopted, this 16th day of August, 2016. 
 

           
   _____________________________________ 

      Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
      Moore County Board of Commissioners 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 08/05/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Recreation Advisory Board 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Remove member from Recreation Advisory Board and appoint new member. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At its August 1, 2016 regular meeting, the Moore County Recreation Advisory Board voted 
unanimously to recommend to the Board of Commissioners the removal of member James Tepatti 
due to excessive absences.  Per staff, Mr. Tepatti has not attended any meetings since January.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Director has recommended the appointment of applicant Michael Gatti to 
fill the unexpired term of Mr. Tepatti. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make appropriate notifications and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to remove James Tepatti from the Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
Make a motion to appoint a new member to the Recreation Advisory Board to fill the unexpired term 
of Mr. Tepatti through February 28, 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution for Establishment of Policy and Procedure for Appointments to Moore County Boards, 
Committees, Commissions, or Councils (See Section I, F.) 
 
08/01/2016 Recreation Advisory Board Minutes (See page 2) 
 
Recreation Advisory Board Membership Roster 
 
Recreation Advisory Board Appointment Applications 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.









      ___________________________        ____________________________       __________________________ 
      Larry Caddell – Chairperson             Karen O’Hara – Vice Chair                Billy Ransom – Director 
       Parks and Recreation Advisory Board            Parks and Recreation Advisory Board            Moore County Parks and Recreation 

Moore County Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting 
Minutes for Monday, August 1, 2016 
12:00pm – Hillcrest Park Field House 

 
Attendance – Members: Karen O’Hara, Randy Saunders, Larry Caddell, Travis Greene, Seth Powers 
                                          
Staff: Billy Ransom, Jim Rogers, Shiela Klein 
 
Welcome: Mr. Caddell welcomed and introduced Dr. Seth Powers, Director of Student Support Services Moore County 
Schools, as new addition to the MCPR Advisory Council.  He then welcomed the council and called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of minutes from May 2, 2016 Meeting – A motion was made by Randy Saunders and a second by Karen O’Hara 
to approve previous meeting minutes. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Old Business: 
Jim Rodgers gave the council members updates on Athletics and Programs:  39 Teams completed a very positive 
Baseball, Softball, T-Ball and Coach Pitch season in mid-July.  In July MCPR hosted an 18 Team District Tournament 
although the MCPR team did not advance the event was successful.  The 10 team SWAC Tournament rounded out July 
and we saw our older team advance and they showed very well at the state. This was our first time offering for Adult 
Kickball and inquiries dwindled as the temperatures rose.  Regretfully, low registration numbers for the Adult Kickball 
league have resulted in program cancellation.  
 
Splitting the season proved very successful for Baseball this spring.  This year our basketball season will also be divided 
into 2 phases.  The younger (5, 6, 7, 8) players will start in December and end in January. Older players (9, 10, 11, and 12) 
start mid-January and finish up the end of February.  After a roundtable discussion, all agreed on the merits of this timing 
that will allow students who did not make the school cuts ample time to register for MCPR.  Students are not eligible for 
dual registration.  
 
New Business: 
The 2017 State Tournament will be hosted here at Hillcrest announced Mr. Ransom.  The three younger age groups will 
be represented here Friday night, Monday and Sunday with the potential of games through Wednesday.  Mr. Ransom and 
the Tournament Committee will be meeting this week in a planning session for the Sept. 15-17, 2016 Dixie Softball 
Director’s year-end meeting hosted here. 
 
Sample Vendor Contracts were discussed. Mr. Ransom expressed his concern that the suggested one million dollar 
liability cap may not be proportionate to small business vendors we occasionally have at our tournaments and special 
event activities. It was recommended that he contact these vendors and research their current coverages. 
 
Since we have had inquiries from area business’s that would like to provide photography services for MCPR, Mr. Ransom 
discussed MCPR employing a Photo Contract Agreement.  It was agreed that the process needed a new and current 
baseline for costs going into 2017 and Mr. Ransom would follow through on these options. 
 
Shiela Klein mentioned that MCPR longtime friend and supporter James “Jim” Marshburn had recently passed away.  In 
memory of Jim and testament to his legacy MCPR has received several donations in his memory. 
 
Board Concerns – During the lunch break, Larry Caddell gave new member Dr. Seth Powers and council members an 
update on the Eagle Springs property.  Currently our County Attorney is rectifying easement issues and when resolved 
will come to the Council with options and recommendations for a sales strategy. 
 
Commissioner Randy Saunders suggested we look at the National Athletic Village development. Both he and Travis 
Greene shared some of the projects, fields, and outreaches that they are undertaking.  
 
 
 
 



      ___________________________        ____________________________       __________________________ 
      Larry Caddell – Chairperson             Karen O’Hara – Vice Chair                Billy Ransom – Director 
       Parks and Recreation Advisory Board            Parks and Recreation Advisory Board            Moore County Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
Chairman Caddell brought Council member James Tepatti’s meeting absences (none attended in 2016) to the attention of 
the board.   Mr. Caddell expressed his concern and proposed that this position should be filled by an individual who can 
be actively engaged.  He moved that it be recommended to the County Commission, to replace Mr. Tepatti on the 
Advisory Council.  Motion seconded by Travis Greene, passed unanimously 
 
 
It was noted that Commissioner Randy Saunders will be coming to the end of his term as County Commission by the end 
of 2016.  It would please this Advisory Council to appoint Randy Saunders, as a private citizen, at the end of his term as 
Commissioner, to the Moore County Parks and Recreation Advisory Council.    
 
Councilmembers agreed to convene their next meeting on Monday October 3, 2016. 
 
Adjournment – A motion was made by Mr. Greene to adjourn the meeting. Randy Saunders seconded the motion. 
Motion was carried. 



MOORE COUNTY RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD

Name Initial Appt Current Appt Term Expiration
Larry Caddell Mar-15 Feb-18 Feb-18
Travis Greene Mar-15 Feb-18 Feb-18
Karen O'Hara Mar-14 Mar-14 Feb-17
Seth Powers permanent as designated by MCS Superintendent
Billy Ransom N/A
Randy Saunders Jan-15 Jan-15 N/A
James Tepatti Mar-15 Feb-18 Feb-18
Kathy Watkins Feb-11 Feb-14 Feb-17









  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 08/08/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Workforce Development Board 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint member to the Workforce Development Board. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The term of service for Workforce Development Board member Kristin Richmond expired July 31st.  
Ms. Richmond has served one term and is recommended and willing to serve an additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Kristin Richmond to the Workforce Development Board for a three-year 
term expiring July 31, 2019. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 08/08/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Library Board of Trustees 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint two members to the Library Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The terms for Library Board members Theron Bell and Clara Bernicken expire August 31st.  Each of 
these members has served the limit of two consecutive three-year terms as Ms. Bell has been a 
member since 1992 and Ms. Bernicken since 2010.  Library Director Alice Thomas has requested the 
commissioners consider waiving the limit pursuant to authority granted in the bylaws and 
reappointing each of these members for an additional three-year term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint two members to the Library Board of Trustees for three-year terms 
expiring August 31, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Letter from Alice Thomas 
Library Board Membership Roster 
Library Board Appointment Applications 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.C.





MOORE COUNTY LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Name Initial Appt Current Appt Term Expiration
Barbara Allred Sep-04 Oct-13 Oct-16
Theron Bell Aug-92 Aug-13 Aug-16
Clara Bernicken Aug-10 Aug-13 Aug-16
Patricia Buelt Nov-15 Mar-16 Mar-19
Cynthia Clendenin Jun-14 Jun-14 Jun-17
Jerry Daeke Jan-15 Jan-15 N/A
Jan Hecox Apr-15 Apr-15 Apr-18
Peter Madsen Aug-02 Aug-15 Aug-18
Karuna Rekhraj Apr-15 Apr-15 Apr-18
Richard Rodda Feb-08 Feb-14 Feb-17
Susan Zucchino Jun-96 Aug-15 Aug-18





















  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk  
  
DATE: 08/10/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Transportation Advisory Board 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint new member to the Moore County Transportation Advisory Board. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
There is a vacancy for a transit user member on the Transportation Advisory Board.  An application 
has been received from Ms. Yvette Ausby, who is recommended to fill this position. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint Yvette Ausby to the Transportation Advisory Board for a three-year term 
expiring August 31, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Appointment Application of Yvette Ausby 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.D.




	AGENDA
	III.A. INTERN RECOGNITION
	IV.A. BOARD OF E & R REPORT
	V.A. AUG 2 MINUTES
	V.B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	V.C. TAX RELEASES/REFUNDS
	V.D. MONEY MARKET AGMT AMNDMT
	V.E. MARTIN STARNES AMENDMENT
	V.F. GLOBE COMM. AMENDMENT
	V.G. ATKINS NORTH AMERICA
	V.H. EMERGENCY MGMT GRANT
	V.I. JCPC REVISION
	VI.A. HEARING: RELIANCE PKGING
	VI.B. HEARING: STAGE RD SOLAR
	VI.C. CALL TO: WILLIAMS SAND
	VIII.A. COST ALLOCATION PLAN
	VIII.B. ROAD ADDITIONS
	VIII.C. ROAP APPLICATION
	VIII.D. MUTUAL AID HOKE CO.
	VIII.E. GENERATOR AMENDMENT
	VIII.F. WATER METERS
	VIII.G. OCCUPANCY TAX
	IX.A. APPTS/RECREATION
	IX.B. APPTS/WORKFORCE DEV.
	IX.C. APPTS/LIBRARY
	IX.D. APPTS/TRANSPORTATION



